
WEST VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION


DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS


EQUIPMENT DIVISION


BIDDER'S EVALUATION REPORT


PROCUREMENT SPECIFICATIONS FOR OPEN END CONTRACT


NO. 269-1-K


25,950 LB. GVW CAB AND CHASSIS/UTILITY BED

NOTE TO BIDDER:    Procurement Specification No. 269-1-K, Paragraph 2.0 recommends the completion and submittal of this Report with your bid.  Purpose of this Report is to enable the West Virginia Division of Highways Evaluation Committee to make full and fair evaluation of the bid.  Addendums in order, along with a summary of exception as a separate attachment, should be with Bidder’s Evaluation Report.

FAILURE TO SUBMIT THIS REPORT, COMPLETE IN ITS ENTIRETY, MAY SUBJECT THE BIDDER

TO DISQUALIFICATION.

Reference Requisition No.: ______________________

Bidder's Name:____________________________________________________________

Address:__________________________________________________________________

Telephone Number:_________________________________________________________

Years Bidder has been registered to do business with the State of West Virginia:  ______________YRS.

Years Company has been an authorized dealer for proposed unit:                        _______________YRS.

X3.2
Have you complied with all mandatory specifications?
_____ YES _____ NO

X4.2   
DELIVERY:

X4.2.1 
Delivery date of completed representative unit:________________ Calendar Days After 











Receipt of Purchase Agreement

X4.2.2 
Delivery date of balance of completed units:  ________________ Calendar Days After Receipt of 

        











Purchase Agreement

X5.0
AWARD CRITERIA;

X5.1
Price per unit: 





________________per unit

X6.0   SPECIFICATIONS ‑ GENERAL

X6.1   Manufacturer, model, series, and date of manufacture of proposed unit:

________________________________________________________________________

Is descriptive literature, fully describing proposed unit attached to your bid? _____ YES _____ NO

If not, why?______________________________________________________________

X6.2
Will the required number of service manuals, and complete parts list be delivered to the 

Equipment Division at Buckhannon upon completion of delivery of total units?












_____ YES _____ NO

Will the required Equipment Preventive Maintenance Form (Section X6.2 of Bidders Evaluation Report) be provided upon inspection of the pilot unit?


_____ YES _____ NO 

X6.2

2-10-00


EQUIPMENT PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE QUESTIONNAIRE

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED IN ITS ENTIRETY BY SUCCESSFUL BIDDER OR MANUFACTURER’S TECHNICAL REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO DELIVERY OF PILOT MODEL TO THE WVDOH.

DESCRIPTION: _______________________________________
MAKE: ___________________________________

MODEL: ________________________    
YEAR: __________
PURCHASE AMOUNT: ______________________

ENGINE:
MAKE: ______________________ 
MODEL: __________________ 
FUEL TYPE: ________________________

HORSEPOWER: _______________
CYLINDER: ________
ENGINE SERIAL: __________________________

 

COOLING SYSTEM CAPACITY: ______________________

BELTS:

DESCRIPTION:




PART NUMBERS:

___________________________________________
_________________________________________________

___________________________________________
_________________________________________________

GVW: _______________________AXLE CAPACITY: FRONT: ______________
REAR:______________

TIRES:

FRONT MAKE & SIZE: ______________________________________________

REAR MAKE & SIZE: _______________________________________________

DIMENSIONS OF UNIT:
LENGTH: __________

WIDTH: ______________
LENGTH: ___________

VENDOR CONTACT PERSON: ____________________________________

PHONE: __________________________

PARTS:

BATTERY MAKE: ____________________
MODEL: ___________________

CCA: _______________________

TOP OR SIDE POST: __________________
DIMENSIONS: LENGTH ________ WIDTH ________ HEIGHT __________

SPARK PLUGS OR FUEL INJECTORS MAKE: ______________
PART # __________________________________________

FUEL PUMP OR INJECTION PUMP MAKE: ________________
MODEL: _________________________________________

ALTERNATOR MAKE: __________________________________
PART #:__________________________________________

STARTER MAKE: ______________________________________
PART #: _________________________________________

TURBO CHARGER MAKE: ______________________________
PART #: _________________________________________

TRANS. MAKE: ____________________
MODEL: _________________________   AUTO/MANUAL: ____________________

HYDRAULIC PUMP MAKE: _____________________________
MODEL: _________________________________________

FILTERS

MAKE
PART NO.

LUBRICANT

MANUFACTURER TYPE

OIL

__________________________________
ENGINE
__________________________________________

AIR INNER
__________________________________
TRANSMISSION__________________________________________

AIR OUTER__________________________________
POWER STEERING _______________________________________

FUEL PRIMARY ______________________________
HYDRAULIC  
__________________________________________

FUEL SECONDARY ___________________________
DIFFERENTIALS _________________________________________

COOLANT
__________________________________
BRAKE FLUID 
__________________________________________

HYDRAULIC
_______________________________
COOLANT
__________________________________________

OTHER

__________________________________ 
OTHER 
__________________________________________

X6.3
TRAINING:

Will training seminar be conducted on Preventive Maintenance, Operator and Mechanic Training                      







_____YES _____ NO

Will you conduct training with each purchase order against this open end contract?











_____ YES _____ NO

Will training be conducted within 2 working days from the delivery of the pilot unit on the individual purchase order?







_____ YES _____ NO

If NO, explain time frame_____________________________________________________________

Will an Operator’s Manual be furnished directly to Training Academy prior to the 
delivery of the pilot?


_____ YES _____ NO

X6.4   
If you are the successful vendor, will you furnish all training aids, i.e., videos, projectors, required in conducting the training?

         _____ YES _____ NO

X6.4.1    
Will all manuals, booklets, etc. explaining preventive maintenance, operator procedures, and service schedule be delivered with each unit?           


_____ YES_____NO 

If NO, explain _____________________________________________________

X6.5
WARRANTY AND SERVICE POLICY

Will the warranty and service you provide comply with all areas as stated in Section 6.5 of specifications                               






_____ YES _____ NO

Is warranty literature attached?




_____ YES _____ NO

Is a minimum two (2) year bumper to bumper basic parts and labor warranty excluding abuse 
and normal wear items included?




_____ YES _____ NO

Describe:

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

X6.5
WARRANTY AND SERVICE POLICY QUESTIONNAIRE

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED IN ITS ENTIRETY AND SUBMITTED WITH YOUR BID. 

(If additional lines are needed, make copies of form.)

1. Define the terms of the standard warranty.  If not offered, so state.  (Attach copy)

2. Define warranty service to be performed at DOH facilities and warranty service to be performed at 

manufacturer’s representative facility.  List name and location of manufacturer’s representative.

3. List locations for parts inventories that are within the State of West Virginia.  Also, list availability levels, if 

known.

4. During the term of warranty, list the guarantee discount to manufacturer’s published list price for parts that 

bidder will sell the parts to owner.

A.
Terms: Net 30
Manufacturer’s published list price less: __________% discount

B.
Terms: Net 60
Manufacturer’s published list price less: __________% discount

C.
Terms: Net 90
Manufacturer’s published list price less: __________% discount

5. During the term of warranty, will all manufacturers or engineering improvements be submitted to Division of 

Highways?






_____ YES _____ NO

6. During the term of warranty, list the guaranteed rates charged for repair to the unit.

A.
Shop Rate

$ __________ per mechanic hour

B.
Travel Time Charge

$ __________ per mechanic hour


(Specify if one-way)

__________; port to port __________

C.
Mileage Charge

$__________ per vehicle mile


(Specify if one-way

__________; port to port __________

D.
Field Mechanic Rate

$__________ per mechanic hour

E.
Specify period of time that prices are in effect: __________________________

F.
Surcharge for miscellaneous items: ____________________%   


X6.6 
EVALUATION COMMITTEE REQUIREMENTS

Is all component specifications, product literature, component models provided for Evaluation Committee bid determination?




_____ YES _____ NO

X6.7
Will all parts, equipment, accessories, material, design and performance characteristics not

specified herein, but which are necessary to provide a complete unit, be furnished with the unit 

and conform in strength, quality of material, and quality of workmanship to those which are 

advertised and provided to the market in general by the unit industry?                                    










_____YES _____NO

X6.7.1
Are all parts and accessories adequate and regularly supplied as standard to be included except 
those which may be duplications of specifications herein, and except these by specification are not 

to be furnished?                                        



_____YES _____NO

X6.7.2
Are all standard safety features that are required by Federal and State statutes of law included?                   








_____YES _____NO

X7.0
SPECIFICATIONS OF THE QUOTED UNIT

The bidder should complete the following schedule in order for the Division to compare the actual bid 
unit to the specifications.  Should the bidder except a requirement, then such exception may be only on 
the basis that such feature is not offered by the manufacturer.  The Division will have the sole 

discretion as to whether the bidder's substitution meets the requirements of the specifications.

X8.0    
SPECIFICATIONS ‑ CHASSIS

           
Manufacturer: ____________________________ Model: ___________________

X8.1    
GVW Plate Rating:___________________ Lbs.

X8.2    
Cab to Axle Dimension: _____________ Usable Inches

X8.3    
Wheelbase: ___________________ Inches

X8.4    
Frame:

        
Frame Steel: _______________ PSI

        
R.B.M. _____________________ Ins/Lb.

X8.4.1

Is frame rail clean of obstruction on outside of both rails from rear of cab 


back for installation of utility body 

_____ YES _____ NO
X8.5    
Cab:   The crew cab seats _____ adult passengers with _____ doors.  Manufacturer's 

standard steel and/or fiberglass, equipped with one piece tilt  hood and fenders.                                        









______ YES _____ NO

X8.5.1  

Cab door locks on both doors         


_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.2  

Dual sun visors                      



_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.3  

Arm rests both sides                 


_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.4  

Seat:

        

Is front seat seating and belts for three (3) _____ YES _____ NO or single drivers 



seat with two (2) person companion seat _____ YES _____ NO



Is rear seat full width bench seating three (3) with seat belts









_____ YES _____ NO



Is total seating for driver and five (5) adult passengers










_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.5  

Floor mats:

        

Rubber floor mats throughout cab with non-absorbent backing under mats 









_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.6  

Turn signals:

        

Manufacturers heavy duty self canceling with hazard warning switch

                                             





_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.7  

Heater and defroster:Fresh air type, heaviest duty     
_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.7.1


Rear heater for back seat compartment provided
_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.8  

Air conditioning manufacturers standard with replaceable fresh air filter









_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.9  

Windshield wipers and washers:

        

Two speed electric wipers with intermittent feature. 

      Washer system has largest reservoir offered by manufacturer.  









_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.10 

Radio:  AM/FM                        


_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.11 

Instruments: Direct readout type     


_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.11.1  


Engine oil pressure               


_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.11.2  


Engine coolant temperature        


_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.11.3  


Voltmeter                         



_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.11.4  


Engine RPM tachometer             


_____ YES _____ NO
X8.5.11.5  


Speedometer with odometer         

_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.11.6  


Air filter restriction indicator, dash mounted
_____YES _____ NO

X8.5.11.7  


Engine hour meter, oil pressure controlled  
_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.11.8  


Fuel gauge with low fuel warning indicator
_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.11.9 


Starter switch key or push button 


_____ YES _____ NO
X8.5.11.10


Low coolant indicator



_____ YES _____ NO
X8.5.12   
 Rearview mirrors: dual heated west coast type

_____ YES _____ NO


Size: ______________________________ adjustable natural finish with fore and aft breakaway feature





_____ YES _____ NO


Corrosive resistant finish ___ or stainless steel powder coat _____ or aluminum _____ or separate black molded composite housing and mounting brackets _____ 
X8.5.13    
Grab handle both sides internal or external to rear of door opening










_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.14    
Glass tinted safety glass all locations     


_____ YES _____ NO

X8.5.15    
List accessories not indicated above but are standard:

           
_____________________________________________________________________

           
_____________________________________________________________________

           
_____________________________________________________________________

X8.6    
Engine:

X8.6.1  
Diesel Engine: _______ HP @ ______ RPM

X8.6.2  
Peak torque: _________ lb ft/lb torque

X8.6.3  
Horizontal exhaust that meets all Federal Noise Abatement Requirements?

                                                            



_____ YES _____ NO

X8.6.4  
Air cleaner:  Dry type with frontal or side air intake duel element











_____ YES _____ NO
X8.6.5  
Oil Filter full flow type            



_____ YES _____ NO

X8.6.6  
Fuel heater water separator mounted inside engine compartment











_____ YES _____ NO


Manufacturer: _________________________
X8.6.7  
In block engine heater? 




_____ YES _____ NO     _________ Watts



Includes weatherproof spring loaded cap over plug
_____ YES _____ NO

X8.7    Clutch:

X8.7.1  
Two plate ceramic 14 inch diameter mechanical pull type control and kwik adjust manual feature











_____ YES _____ NO



Manufacturer: ___________________________
X8.8    Cooling System:


  
Is the cooling system capable of maintaining engine temperature with the manufacturer's recommended range during continuous operation?










_____YES _____NO

  

Does cooling system have thermostat and by‑pass for warm up?











_____YES _____NO

  

Is anti‑freeze OAT type extended life or equal rated to ‑30(F or lower?                                                        








_____YES _____NO

X8.8.1


Is radiator provided with bug screen or stone and gravel guard











_____ YES _____ NO

X8.9    Fuel Tank:

X8.9.1  
Single tank with built in step       



_____ YES _____ NO

X8.9.2  
Capacity _________ U.S. gallons

X8.9.3  
Is filler cap chain tethered to fuel tank to prevent loss? 
_____ YES _____ NO
X8.9.4

Tank(s) comply with FMVSS 
_____ YES _____ N0 
1___ OR 2 ___ tanks

X8.10  
Electrical System:

X8.10.1    Type:(Manufacturer)_______________12 volt negative ground system

                                                       




_____ YES _____ NO
X8.10.2    Number of 12 volt batteries ____________ with sealed terminals












_____ YES _____ NO
X8.10.3    Batteries:  Approximate Ratings

X8.10.3.1  

Reserve Capacity _______________minutes @ 27(C  fully charged (all batteries).

X8.10.3.2  

Cold crank power: __________ amps @ __________.

X8.10.4    

Alternator capacity: ______ amps brushless with internal regulator

X8.10.5    

Wiring:  Is it heavy duty hypalon type or equal heavy duty sheathing? 










_____ YES _____ NO

X8.10.6    

Does the lighting conform to the W. Va. Motor Vehicle Code ICC











_____ YES _____ NO

X8.10.7

Is a 7 way trailer connection plug provided for the body company to be installed in the rear of service body assembly (next to hitch)
_____ YES _____ NO



Is it ABS compliant
_____ YES _____ NO  Manufacturer/Part#_______________________

X8.10.8


Is fire extinguisher installed in unit conveniently located?










_____ YES _____ NO

X8.11   
Transmission:

        

Manufacturer: _________________________    Model: _______________

X8.12   
Driveline:

        

Manufacturer: _________________________    Model: _______________

X8.13   
Rear Axle:

X8.13.1 

Rated Capacity: ________________ lbs.

X8.13.2 

Rear Spring Capacity:_______ lbs. including multi-leaf  auxiliary spring system of _______lbs

X8.13.3 

Ratio: ___________________ is top speed of vehicle 65 MPH?










____YES ____NO

X8.14   
Front Axle:

X8.14.1 

Rated Capacity: _______________ lbs

X8.14.2 

Front Spring Capacity: ____________ lbs.

X8.14.3 

Are the shock absorbers of the heavy duty type? 
_____ YES _____ NO

X8.15   
Brakes “Hydraulic Disk Brakes”
X8.15.1 

Front brake size: _____________________________
X8.15.2

Rear brake size: ______________________________
X8.15.3 

Do brakes meet or exceed all Federal and State standards 
_____YES _____NO

X8.16   
Tires and Wheels:

X8.16.1 

Wheels, front and rear size _____________________

        


Are they hub piloted steel disc type 


_____ YES _____ NO

        


Are they the manufacturer's standard to accommodate specified tire size

                                                                



_____ YES _____NO



All wheels include wheel guard separators

_____ YES _____ NO
X8.16.2 

Front size: ________________

      


Are they highway tread 



_____ YES _____ NO

        


Are they radial tubeless 



_____ YES _____ NO



Manufacturer/Model: _____________________________
X8.16.3 

Rear size: ____________

        


Are they on/off highway tread 


_____ YES _____ NO

        


Are they radial tubeless 



_____ YES _____ NO



Manufacturer/Model: ______________________________
X8.17 
 
Power Steering:

X8.17.1    

Manufacturer: _______________________________________________________

X8.18  

Front Bumper: Manufacturer __________________________________________

X8.19  

Other Standard Features ‑ Chassis

           

List other standard features offered and not addressed above:

           

_____________________________________________________________________

           

_____________________________________________________________________

           

_____________________________________________________________________

X8.20 

Paint: Describe proposed method of painting unit:

           

_____________________________________________________________________

           

_____________________________________________________________________

           

_____________________________________________________________________

           

Is sample of proposed paint attached to bid?  _____YES_____NO

           

If NO, when will sample be submitted? _______________________________

X8.20.1    

Specify cab exterior/interior and service body color & paint type:

           

_____________________________________________________________________

X8.20.2    

Will chassis be painted manufacturer's standard black?











_____YES _____NO
     
X8.20.3   

Is truck grille manufacturer's standard similar to silver/aluminum in color?                  









_____YES _____NO

X8.20.4    

Are fuel tanks, steps, front and rear bumper manufacturers standard color?  









_____ YES _____ NO




Non-corrosive coated?
_____ YES _____ NO

X8.20.4.1


Wheel paint (describe):_____________________________________________________

X8.20.5

Will plant paint procedures be manufacturers standard for prep











_____ YES _____ NO






Cab and utility body white and chassis black?
_____ YES _____ NO

X8.20.6

Will you furnish larger paint sample if required?
_____ YES _____ NO

X8.20.7

Detail and Decorative Stripes with Logo:

X8.20.7.1


Are stripes provided 2" type w/taper at front of hood?_____ YES _____ NO

X8.20.7.2


Does the conspicuity striping material provided meet the requirements of Section 8.20.7.2, Through
8.20.7.3, 8.20.7.4, 8.20.7.5, 8.20.7.6, and 8.20.7.7






_____ YES _____ NO
X8.20.7.8


Is your proposed paint plan attached with your bid?_____ YES _____ NO

9.0     
SPECIFICATIONS ‑ UTILITY SERVICE BODY

Manufacturer: _____________________   Model: ________________
Have you attached shop drawings?
_____ YES _____ NO


X9.1    Overall Body Weight: _____________________ Lbs.

X9.2    Body Overall Approximate Dimensions:

X9.2.1  
Length: ______________________ Inches

X9.2.2  
Width: _______________________ Inches

X9.2.3  
Height at Right Front: _____________ Inches

        

Other: ______________ Inches

X9.2.4  
Compartment Depth: __________ Inches

X9.2.5  
Head Room, floor to inside top of enclosure: _________________ Inches

X9.3    Construction:

        
 Is unit electrically welded, rust resistant two‑sided A‑60 galvanneal steel? 









 _____ YES _____ NO
X9.3.1  
Floor plate: ______________ treadplate

X9.3.2  
Are front and rear cross members 5 inch, 6.7 structural steel channel?

                                                  




_____ YES _____ NO

        

Are intermediate cross members 12 gauge commercial grade steel channels?

                                                  




_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.3  
Are doors double panel with slam action type locks keyed alike?











____YES _____ NO

        

Gauge ________________  Are there chains on (curb side) horizontal doors to hold level for work table? 




_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.4  
Wheelhousing:

        

Are they full inner lined with steel and accepting up to 11R22.5 on/off highway tread radial tires? 





_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.5  
Gauge of galvanized steel of trays ___________ Are they slotted on 4 inch centers for dividers, with 3 removable and adjustable shelves in each of the left front vertical compartments and right rear compartment?                       _____ YES _____ NO

        

Number of dividers included ___________

X9.3.6  
Gauge of galvanneal steel of partitions, bottoms, headers, panel top and bulkhead 











_______________

X9.3.7  
Is a spare tire carrier provided against the front bulkhead?










_____YES_____NO

        

Does the carrier accept tires and rims up to 11R22.5?_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.8  
Is the bumper dual wheel type safety step bumper with recess for pintle ball hitch of heavy steel treadplate? 











_____ YES _____ NO

        

With combination pintle‑ball hitch rated at 2,000 lb. torque weight and 12,000 lb. trailer weight?                                           

_____ YES _____ NO
        

Height of ball above ground __________ Inch

        

Does the bumper design provide a step full width of body? _____YES_____NO

        

Step __________ inches from the ground.  Ball diameter ________ inches.

X9.3.9

OSHA approved backup alarm 112 dba shock mounted at rear body











_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.10 
Mud Flaps:

        

Are they rubber type provided behind rear wheels? 
_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.11 
Are stop, turn, flasher, and backup lights LED type recessed into rear vertical face of body with trim rings fitted for aesthetics and moisture resistance?  












_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.12 
Will body surfaces not accessible after assembly be fully painted and rust proofed prior to assembly?                     















_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.13 
Describe the two (2) curbside front compartments:

        

____________________________________________________________________

        

_____________________________________________________________________

        

_____________________________________________________________________
X9.3.14 
Are heavy duty ladder racks with adjustable slides front and rear of body provided and installed?               




_____ YES _____ NO

        

Height of ladder racks above the bed floor______ inches

X9.3.15 
Is the unit equipped with heavy duty ladder located at right rear corner to enable placement of equipment on top of bed? 


_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.16 
Is door hardware stainless steel___YES___NO         or cadmium plated___YES___NO

        

Do locks have double strikers? 



_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.17 
Do street side horizontal doors have rubber bumpers to protect paint?

                                                            



_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.18 
Clear vertical opening of double rear doors _________ inches

        

Clear horizontal opening ________ inches.

X9.3.19 
Are two (2) dome lights with manual switch wired into chassis electrical system and installed on ceiling of bed enclosure? 


_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.20 
Do wheel wells have rolled edge to provide strength and eliminate sharp edges?   

_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.21 
Are all four (4) doors sealed with automotive type rubber sealer? 










_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.22 
Does the top enclosures include three (3) full length horizontal shelves each side with the necessary supporting bulkheads?  


_____ YES _____ NO

        

Do these shelves extend past the inside face of the body side compartments? 

_____ YES _____ NO

        

Does each have a three (3) inch front lip to retain materials and tools? 










_____ YES _____ NO
X9.3.23
Service Body paint: ___________________________________________________________
X9.3.24 
Is the understructure completely undercoated? 
_____ YES _____ NO


Will it void the warranty if undercoated?

_____ YES _____ NO
X9.3.25 
Does the proposed unit meet or exceed "OSHA OF 1970" or subsequent changes?  

_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.26 
Does the unit conform to advertising guidelines? 
_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.27 
Will the Preventive Maintenance and Operator Procedures as described be provided?  

_____ YES _____ NO

X9.3.27.1  

If you are the successful vendor, will you furnish all training aids; i.e., videos, projectors, etc., required in conducting the training? _____ YES _____ NO
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